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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the
charitable company and the group for the year ended 31 August 2019. The annual report serves the purpose of
both a Trustees' report, and a Directors’ report under company law. The Group referred to in this report
encompasses Sheldon School (Companies House Registration Number 07556236) and its subsidiary trading
company Sheldon School Trading Limited (Companies House Registration Number 09551925).

The Trust operates an academy for pupils aged 11 to 18 in Chippenham. It has a pupil capacity of 1,795 and
had a roll of 1,756 in the January 2019 school census. .

STRUC'I"URE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constltutlon '
The Academy is @ company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charltable company and the

group's Memorandum and A_rtrcles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy.

The Trustees of Sheldon School are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company
law.

The Members of the Academy Trust are the subscribers to the Trust's Memorandum ‘of Association, and any
other individuals permitted to bécome members under its Articles of Association. The Members of the Academy
Trust are the Chair, Vice Chair, Chairs of committees and Chair of the Charters Board. They have an overview of
the governance arrangements of the Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year, except as noted, are included in the Reference and
Admlnlstratlve Details on pages 1 to 2.

The Chaners Board acts as the guardian of the Academy’s ethos and values as expressed in the Sheldon
Charters. The Charters Board comprises: L Carver (Parent Governor) resigned 10 July 2019; K M Pearce
(Parent Governor- member) appointed 10 July 2019; K E M Hathaway (Governor or Community member) PCT
Story (Governor .or Community member);, J C Hiiton (Community member) appointed 27 March 2019; D
Corrywright (Community member) resigned 9 January 2019; N C B Spurdell (Headteacher, ex officio); E |
Beange (Teacher member appointed 1 September 2018); A M Douglas (Teacher member); N D Cooke
(Support Staff member) .

Members Irablllty ‘

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceedlng £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a

member.

Trade union facility time
There are two members of staff who were relevant union officials during the penod The Academy also

financially contrlbutes to the faC|I|t|es time costs of regional trade union officials.

The two union officials at the school are both full time employees and spent 0%-1% and 1%-50% of their time
respectively on trade union duties which amounts to a total cost of approximately £1,170.

Trustees' Indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the Academy's expense to cover the liability of the
Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default
or breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Academy, provided that any such
insurance shall not extend to any claim arising from any act or omissicn which the Trustees knew to be a breach
of trust or breach of duty or which was committed by the Trustees in reckless disregard to whether it was a
breach of trust or breach of duty or not and provided also that any such insurance shall not extend to the costs of
any unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against the Trustees in their capacity as Directors of
the Academy. The limit of this indemnity is £2,000,000.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

TRUSTEES

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The Academy's Board of Trustees comprises the Headteacher, a minimum of 7 Parent Trustees, up to 4 Staff
Trustees (providing that the total number of Trustees, including the Headteacher, who are employees of the
Academy, does not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees) and up to 7 other Trustees.

The Academy shall have the followmg Trustees as set out in its Articles of Assomatlon and fundlng agreement

up to 1 Local Authority (LA) Trustee who is appointed by Wiltshire County'(_)ouvn_c,il. '
up to 7 Parent Trustees who are elected by parents of registered pupils at the Academy. .

o up to 3 Teacher. Trustees who are elected by teachers at the Academy.

) up to 1 Support Staff Trustee who is elected by support staff members at the Academy
o - up to 8 Community Trustees who are appointed by the Board of Trustees.

) the Headteacher who is treated for all purposes as being an ex officio Trustee

The Academy can also have Associate Members. Associate Members are appomted by the Governing Body as
members of any committee established by them, but are not Trustees. '

Trustees are app’omted for a four-year period, except that this time limit does not apbly to tne Headteacher.
Subject to remaining eligible to be-a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee can be re-appointed or re-elected.

When appointing new Trustees, the Board will give consideration to the skills and experience mix of existing
Trustees in order to ensure that the Board has the necessary skills to contnbute fully to the Academy's
development. . : .

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees
The Academy has a Trustee Induction Programme which includes relevant trainlng Th|s |s available from the
Clerk to the Trustees

The training. and induction provided for new Trustees will depend upon their existing: experience. but would
always include a tour of the Academyand a chance to meet staff and pupils. Trustees are provided with copies
of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will-need to undertake
their role as Trustees. As there are normally only two or three new Trustees a year, induction tends to be done
informally and is tailored specifically to the individual. Advantage is taken of specmc courses offered by the Local
Authority and other bodies.

Organlsatronal Structure :

The Board of Trustees normally meets at least 5 times a year. The Board establlshes an overall framework for
the governarice of the Academy and determines membership, terms of reference and procedures of Committees
and other groups. It receives reports- including policies from its Committees for ratification. It monitors the
activities of the Committees through the minutes of their meetings. The Board may from time to time establish
Working Groups to perform specific tasks over a limited timescale. : .

There are 4 committees as follows:

Finance Committee — this committee meets at least 5 times a year and is responsible for monitoring, evaluating
and reviewing policy and performance in relation to financial management, compliance with reporting and
regulatory requirements, receiving reports from the external auditors who undertake a programme of additional
checks and drafting the annual budget. It also incorporates the role of an audit committee. h

Premises Committee — this committee meets at least 4 times a year and is responsible for monitoring evaluating
and reviewing policy and performance in relation to the maintenance, development as well as safety and security
of the buildings and grounds, approval of expenditure for major projects and service contracts, and commercial
lettings.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Curriculum Committee — this committee meets at least 5 times a year to monitor, evaluate and review policy,
practice and performance in relation to currlculum planning and development, target setting and ~assessment,
~ and examinations.

Staffing, Care & Guidance Committee — this committee meets at least 4 times a year to monitor, evaluate and
review policy, practice and performance in relation to all recruitment, personnel and pastoral issues, as, well as
approval of the staffing levels and promotions within agreed budget limits. -

The following decisions are reserved to 'the Board of Trustees: to consider any proposals for changes 1o the
status or constitution of the Academy and its committee structure, to appoint or remove the Chairman .and/or
Vice Chairman, to appoint the Headteacher and Clerk to the Trustees, to approve the School Development Plan
and budget.

The Trustees are responsible for settlng general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, approvmg ‘the
statutory accounts, monitoring the use of budgets and other data by the Academy, and making maJor decisions
about the direction of the Academy, capltal expendlture and staff appointments. :

The Board of Trustees has devolved responsrblllty for day to day management of the Academy to the
Headteacher and Senior Management Team (SMT). The SMT comprises the Headteacher, the Deputy
Headteachers, the Assistant Headteachers and the Business Manager. The SMT implement the policies laid

down by the Trustees and report back to them on performance :

The Academy has a leadership structure which consists of the Trustees, and the Senior Management Team, as
well as senior teaching staff including Faculty and Year Team Leaders, and Support Team Leaders. The aim of
the leadership structure is to devolve responsibility-and encourage involvement in decision making at all levels.
Some spending control is devolved to Budget Holders which must be authorised in line with the Scheme of
Delegation. The Headteacher is responsnble for the appointment of staff, though appointment panels for teaching
posts always include a Trustee. :

The Headteacher is the Accounting Cfﬁcer.

. Arrangements for Setting Pay and Remuneratlon of Key Management Personnel

The Trustees consider that the Board of Trustees and the Senior Management Team compnse the key
management personnel of the Academy in charge of directing and controlling, running and operating the Trust
on a day to day basis. All Trustees give their time freely and no Trustee received remuneration in the year.

Details of Trustees’ expenses and reIated party transactions are disclosed in the notes to the accounts.

The pay of key management personnel is revnewed annually and normally increased in accordance W|th the
School Teachers’ Review Body recommendatlons

Connected Organisations, including Related Party Relationships
The Academy engages with collaborative work through subject leaders for education, work in primary schools
and legacy project work in primary schools.

The Academy also has strong collaborative links with other local networks and organisations, including:

) Feeder primary schools for the provision of extended services.

) The Chippenham Astroturf Project (CAP) 96 which leases part of the Academy's grounds. on which to
build and operate an artificial playing surface. There is a shared use agreement between CAP and the
Academy. One Trustee, currently P C T Story, is nominated by the Academy to serve as a CAP Trustee. .

. The Chippenham Borough Lands Charity which provides grants to assist pupils from low income
backgrounds, and to support specific enrichment projects.

The Sheldon School Enrichment Fund is a related party as the Headteacher, Judith Vosper and Kevin Pearce
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

are Trustees of the Academy, and are also Trustees of the Enrichment Fund. In addition, the Academy’s finance
staff monitor the fund’s bank account and generate gift aid claims on its behalf. The Sheldon School Enrichment
Fund derives its income from donations by parents, sales by the school of second-hand uniform, and through the
easy.fundraising.com website, all of which are used to support specific enrichment activity in school.

As’ of-September' 2019, the Academy has 18 Sheldon Associates taking part in an employer engagement
programme. The aim of the programme is to develop relationships with local employers in order to enhance the
employability skills, increase awareness of career opportunities and inform ‘course choices for all students. The
programme is an excellent stepping stone for the Academy to achieve the Gatsby benchmark — a nationally-
recognised framework for good career guidance in schools. An annual membership fee continues to be payable
by the Associates and the range of employers remains varied and broad. The Academy now has three Sheldon

- Associates who are working with students on a longer-term basis as part of the developing scholarship
programme. ' .

" Sheldon School Trading Limited started trading in September 2015. It receives all lettings income from external
hirers, and .Gift Aids profits back to Sheldon School at the end of each financial year.

The Academy continues’ to share 6th form teaching for some subjects W|th Hardenhmsh School, with Sheldon
. students attendlng Hardenhuish for some lessons and vice versa. -

" There. are no related parties which either control or S|gn|fcantly lnfluence the deCIsmns and operations of

' Sheldon School.  There: are no sponsors or formal Parent Teacher Assomatlons assocuated with the Academy.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and Aims : i
- At Sheldon School we aim to get the best for, and from, each Chl|d We intend to enable each child to realise his
_or her full academic, creative and physical potential and to develop: positive social and moral values. Our
Academy is a community in which children, staff and parents should be part of a happy and caring environment.

‘The aims of the Ac-;‘ademy during the year ended 31 August 2019 are :s,ummaris,ed below:.

~ to continue to raise the standard of educational attainment and achie\(ement of all pupils;

to provide a broad and balanced curriculum, and an extensive range of extracurricular activities;
‘to develop students as more effective and independent learners, demohstrating greater resilience;
to ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and care;
to maximise the- number of students who achieve grades 4 and above in their GCSE subjects and
maximising the numbers of students securing a strong pass (grade 5+) and a standard pass (grade 4+) in
both English and':mathematics

e  to develop the Academys buildings and grounds so that they enable students to achieve their full
potential;

o to improve the effectiveness of the Academy by keeping the curriculum and organlsatlonal structure under
continual review; :

. to support the curriculum at feeder primary schools where possmle by providing specialist teaching, in
languages, the arts and physical education;

) to maintain and develop the ways in which pupils contribute to the whole school and wider communities;

. to maintain and develop the ways in which pupils are encouraged to develop Skl”S and activities that will
contribute to future economic well-being and healthier lifestyles;

s todevelop the Academy's capacity to manage change, and

e " to conduct the Academy's business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and

openness, and improve the School's ability to gain value for money for the funds expended.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

Key priorities and activities were identified in the School Development Pian and were influenced by the significant
challenges and opportunities arising from national changes in educatlon policy and funding. The priorities and
activities included the following:

KN 'Improvrng pupil progress, especially through value added outcomes at both GCSE and A levels.
. Collaboration and community links, including through our former specialisms in science, sport and
languages, as well as through maths and the performlng arts, supporting other schools and maintaining
‘links with the community,

° Improving communication through our virtual learning environment and other internal communications
~ 'systems;
- lmprovmg access to resources and streamlining admrnrstratron )
e Promoting positive behaviour for learning, especially through mentonng the tutorial programme and the
pupil voice.
e - Commissioning and purchasing services previously provrded through the LA, as well as those supporting
the alternative curriculum.
.. . Efficiency 'savings with a view to improving sustainability, maintaining cost effective staffing levels, as well
as the development and embedding of key financial and administrative procedures.
¢ Contlnued improvement to the school environment, especially the’ Iearnlng envrronment the maintenance
L fand development of the infrastructure, as well as security and. accessibility.
e - - Developing the curriculum, especially provision at KS4 & 5;-
. Improving Teaching through Continuing Professional Development focusing on coaching, in-house
» workshops and the development of online resources.
. Undertaking self-evaluation. L
o Maintaining the pupil numbers as near to the approved capacrty as reasonably feasible.

: Publlc Benefit

-The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 17(5) of the Charities Act 2011 to have
due regard to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties.
They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academys aims and objectives and in planning its future
actlvrtres

Sheldon School is a comprehensive school; pupils will be.admitted without reference to ability, aptitude or
culture. The admissions criteria are applied in the following order: looked after and previously looked after
children; siblings of current pupils; children of Sheldon staff; children from the main catchment; children from the
. secondary catchment; children with medical conditions which can be best met by Sheldon School and then any
other children who apply. The main catchment area encompasses the villages and civil parishes around
Chippenham, whilst a secondary catchment area includes the civil parlshes of Chippenham and Chippenham
without.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and Performance

The Academy is in its eighth year of operation and until 2017 was regularly over-subscribed. Successive years in
2017 and 2018 when first preference applications were below PAN led to a drop in overall pupil numbers. Whilst
the number of first preferences for September 2019 exceeded PAN, the final number arriving was 273, seven
students below our limit. This has been partly offset by a slightly mcreased number of sixth form students joining
Sheldon, the 2019 figure being nine up on the corresponding figure from 2018. However, from an overall pupil
total of 1,756 in 2017, the opening pupil total in 2019 has dropped to 1,713.

Examination outcomes remain healthy and in both GCSE and A Level have shown improvement on the previous
two years' performances. At A Level, 24% achieved grades A*-B and 49% A*-C, with only 6 of the 457 entries
being graded U. The overall figure of +0.2 for A Level and ALPS figure of 3 placed the academy comfortably in
the top 20% nationally. At the top end of the ability spectrum, 6% achieved A* and three students progressed to
Oxford or Cambridge University (the second year in a row that three have done so), but it was the success of
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

many middle and lower ability students that réally helped contribute to the very positive showing The academy
was delighted to have exceeded ItS aim of reaching an ALPS grade 4 and will look to malntam this level in the
coming year.

At GCSE, 85% achieved a Grade 4 or higher in English and 80% 4+ in Maths; this contributed to-an improved
Basics figure of 76%, up 4% on 2018. 81% of all entries were graded 4 or above. As in 2018, 13% achieved the
top grades 9/8 and a quarter of the entries were graded 7 and above (old Grade A). Pleasingly, just over half the
year group achieved at least one Grade 7, which further vindicates the academy’s commitment to students belng
able to select four options subjects as part of its broad and balanced curriculum. .

In 2019/20, the academy will look to build on the successes seen in summer 2019 and is focusing spemfcally on
improving the percentage of students achieving Grades 5 and 7 above at GCSE. At A Level, the aspiration is to
see headline figures of A*-B surpass 55% and A*-C go beyond 80%. This would also help ensure a.strong
value-added outcome. To. get the academy there, a newly appointed deputy headteacher and a recently
appointed head of sixth form will continue to develop tracking and monitoring procedures which WI" help |dent|fy
those most in need of lnterventlon .

This has been the first full academic year in which we have enjoyed the benefits of the new dance studlo and
lecture theatre. Pupils across the school as, well as local dance groups and fitness classes have made the most
of our fabulous dance studio while GCSE & A level students and visiting speakers have found the Iayout of the
lecture theatre extremely:helpful. Indeed the lecture theatre hosted our very own question. tlme chaired by the
Chair of Governors when a panel of deputy head candidates were invited to field questlons from staff as part of
their recruitment process. :

Pupils and students returned to school in September 2018 to a transformed Library with a stunning feature
window overlooking Hardenhuish Park. It has immediately proved popular with pupils, students and staff; and
was further enhanced during July & August 2019 with the addition of bespoke furniture to complement the
original design, Highly enjoyable fundraising events and activities over the last couple of years alongside
successful applications to grant- -making organisations had made the purchase of this furniture possible and we
are grateful to everyone who has in dlfferent ways contributed to making our vision for the Library become a
reality. : S . .

A successful Condition Improvement Fund application in December 2018 for £76k enabled us to carry out much-
needed modernisation work to the toilet facilities for visitors and staff next to the Main Hall, and we invested a
substantial part of the additional £95k of capital funding announced by the previous chancellor in November 2018
around the school site to ensure that social-spaces and classrooms are conducive to really good learning. The
remainder of the one-off capital grant from the Department for Education (DfE) was allocated to our Digital
Transformation Strategy — a 3 year IT renewal & investment programme which is being led by our Network
Manager. . .

We also secured a government-baeked interest-free loan to enable us to install energy efficient lighting across
the school site. The anticipated savings in-our energy costs over the next 8 years will more than cover the capltal
repayments and will make a further conitribution to reducing our CO2 output. :

We now have new contractors for catering and cleaning, appointed after a rigorous process .involving a number
of stakeholders, pupils amongst them — and in both aspects, we have asked that environmental factors be a very
high priority. Our cleaning company are committed to using the latest environmentally friendly products and our
catering company have a directive to reduce the need for any non-recyclable materials; single-use plastic drinks
bottles will be a thing of the past. Big strides were made in.2018/19 in all areas of the. school enwronment and we
look forward to improving further in the coming year.

Through our trading subsidiary Sheldon School! Trading Limited, we have continued to actively promote the use
of our school facilities to the local community. We also manage the Astroturf facility on behalf of a local
organisation, Chippenham Astroturf Project 96. As a consequence, we are pleased that our school facilities are
being regularly used for a diverse range of activities, making a substantial profitable contribution to school funds.
The last year has seen a record number of bookings which in turn has enabled us to invest further in our Sports
Hall facilities for the benefit of our school and wider community.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Key Performance Indicators

A key performance indicator is pupil numbers. The more concerted marketing strategy adopted in 2018/19 has
borne some fruit with improved intake numbers in Year 7 — up 15 on the corresponding point in 2018.
International links have also been successful: several students have spent time at Sheldon in Years 8-10 and
five Sixth Form students from Lausanne in 2018/19 have been followed by nine from Switzerland and Germany
for 2019/20. A newly-established football link in the Sixth Form has yielded an additional seven students who
would not have come to Sheldonand this is something the academy would like to develop in future years.
Despite the more carefully targeted strategy for students joining Year 12, the final figure is slightly down on the
one seen in 2018 — but the overall Suxth Form figure has increased by nine compared to the same time twelve

months ago.

Another key financial performance indicator is staffing costs (which include a slight 'adjustment in respect of the
LGPS) as a percentage of GAG. For 2019 this was 91.68% compared to 89.47% in 2018.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has
adequate resources to continue in operatlonal existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it .continues
to adopt the going concern basis in. preparirig the financial statements. Further details regardlng the adoptlon of
the going concern basis can be found in-the Going Concern policy. .o .

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Review

Over 90% of the Academy's income is obtained from the DfE via the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants the
use of which is restricted td particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the year ended 31
August 2019 and the assomated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in.the Statement of Financial
Activities.

Other significant sources of income during the year include grants from the Local Authonty to meet the addltlonal
costs of teaching students with additional needs, and income generated by the school by hirmg out its faC|I|t|es
through its subsidiary tradmg company .

The restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation chargés over the useful Irfe of the
assets concerned, as defi ned in the Academy’s accounting policies.

During the year ended 31 August 2019, total expenditure (excluding restricted fixéd asset funds) of £9 466 782
was covered by grant funding from the DfE together with other incoming resources, of £9,140,767. The excess
of expenditure over income for the year (before actuarial gains and losses) was £326, 01s.

At 31 August 2019 the net book value of fixed assets was £22,277,198 and movements in tangible fixed assets
are shown in note 14 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for prowdmg education and
the associated support services to the pupils of the Academy. .

The Academy continues to look at ways to improve its income from its commercial letting activity and to take
every opportunity to be prepared to make bids for capital and smaller grants as they become available.

Plans to identify future infrastructure improvement and maintenance needs are well developed and regularly
monitored by Trustees, with professmnal expertise sought as appropriate.

At the end of the pericd the Academy was in a strong financial position with good levels of reserves going
forward.

The Trustees recognise that the defined béenefit scheme deficit (Local Government Pension Scheme), which is
set out in note 26 to the financial statements, represents a significant potential liability. However, as the Trustees
consider that the Academy is able to meet its known annual contribution commitments for the foreseeable future
the risk from this liability is currently manageable.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Reserves Policy

The Trustees review the current and projected reserve Ievels of the Academy annually. Any surplus achieved at
the end of the financial year will be transferred to reserves and will form part of the review. The review
encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and
. the nature of reserves. The Trustees also take into consideration the future plans of the Academy, the
uncertamty over future i income streams and other key nsks tdentlﬂed during the review.

The Trustees have determined that the appropriate level of free reserves should be no less than £700,000 and
have earmarked a further £100,000 as a contingency figure. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working
- capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to. prowde a cushion to deal with unexpected
,emergenues such as urgent maintenance.

“The Academys current level of reserves (total funds less the amount held in fixed assets and restricted pension
fund) is £987,105, all of which are free reserves (unrestricted funds not invested in fixed assets and unspent
GAG). Thls is the value that the Trustees monitor in accordance with the reserves policy.

The Trustees have reviewed the future plans of the Academy.and plan to use some of the excess of reserves
over £800,000 for further site improvements, investment in IT and :to manage current funding uncertainty and
rising costs. Key priorities for the next 12 months include replacing two temporary Maths classrooms with an
extension to the existing Maths Block, replacing the majority of the New Block roof and continuing with the 2018-
21 IT renewal & investment programme. :

The defined ‘benefit pension scheme reserve has a negative balance. The effect of the deficit position of the
pension scheme is that the Academy is paying higher employers’ pension contributions over a period of years.
The higher employers’ pension contributions are met from the Academy’s budgeted annual income. Whilst the
deficit will not be immediately eliminated, there should be no actual cash flow deficit on the fund, nor any direct
lmpact on'the free reserves of the Academy

Investment Policy :

Trustees are committed to ensuring that all funds under thelr control are managed in such a way as to maX|m|se ,
return whilst minimising risk. All funds surplus to immediate requirements are invested to optimal effect. Where
-cash flow allows, sums in excess of £100,000 may be invested on deposit for extended periods. Due to the

nature of funding, the Academy may at times hold cash balances surplus to its short-term requirements. The :

Trustees have also authorised the opening of additional short-term bank investment accounts to take advantage
of higher interest rates. No other form of investment is authorised. Day to day management of the surplus funds .
is delegated to the Headteacher and the Business Manager

Prmmpal Risks And Uncertainties

The Senior Management Team and Trustees regularly review. the Risk Register, and receive regular reports
from the School Business Manager on the actions being taken to manage the risks identified to acceptable
levels.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Aeademy are as follows:

Safeguarding and child protection - the Trustees continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in
the areas of selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, as well
- as health & safety and discipline.

Staffing - the success of the Academy is reliant on the quality and retention of its staff and so the Trustees
monitor and review policies and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as
ensuring there is clear succession planning. .

Financial - the Academy has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA. In the
year ended 31 August 2019 93% of the Academy's incoming resources were ultimately Government funded and
whilst this level is expected to continue, there is no assurance that Government or Local Government policy or
practice will remain the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Failures in governance and/or management - the risk in this area arises from potential failure to effectively
manage the Academy's finances, internal controls, compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory returns,
etc. The Trustees continue to review and ensure that appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these risks.
‘This includes ensuring that there are sufficient TrUstées with appropriate skills on the Finance Committee.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds - In line with the requirement in the Academies Financial Handbook, a
Trustee has been appointed to independently ensure that a programme of checks on financial systems and
- records is carried out through the School's appointed external auditors. Internal Assurance checks are .made
twice a year and reports from these visits are provided to the appointed Trustee who in turn updates the Board of
Trustees Finance staff receive training to keep them up to date with financial practice requirements and proper~ :
levels of separation of duties is maintained. '

Reputational - the ongoing success of the Academy is dependent on continuing to attract applications for student
places in sufficient numbers by maintaining the highest academic and pastoral provision. To mitigate this risk,
the Trustees ensure that student success and achievement are closely monitored, reviewed, and publicised.

FUNDRAISING

In addition to the widespread commitment that Sheldon has to its charity work, during 2018/19, there was a
concerted effort in raising monies towards the .complete refurbishment of the library. Local businesses have
contributed financially, and the Academy supplemented this by raising money through two key events over the

o course of the year; an Autumn Ball and a quiz held in February 2019. Due care and attention has been paid to

"rules and regulations in raising funds through raffle prizes, and expenditure on publicity has been limited to
" existing school communication channels and free-coverage by the local press.

~ PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS
The Academy will continue to strive to provide outstandlng ‘education and improve the levels of performance of -
its pupils at all levels, and will continue to aim to attract high quality staff in order to deliver its objectives.

Within the increasingly challenging annual financial limits brought about by reduced levels of funding, the
Academy is pushing forward on developments both inside and outside the classroom in order to maximise the '
academic outcomes of all of its pupils. The Academy was dellghted with Ofsted's recognition in June 2017 that it
places academic excellence as well as the emotional wellbeing of its puplls (and staff) at its heart. Thls remalns
our combined shared priority for all students at the school. .

The Academy has created a targeted school dévelopment plan, taking it to 2021, as well as continuing to aim to
-attract high quality teachers and support staff in order to deliver its objectives.

The Academy will continue to identify opportumhes to bid for capital grants from Government and non-
Government sources to part fund its site development plans.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS
The Academy holds the balance of a small fund in a discrete cost centre which is used to support SEN Training
for the benefit of schools in North Wiltshire.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are Trustees at the time when this Trustees' Report is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as that Trustee is aware, there is no relevant -audit information of which the charitable group's
auditors are unaware, and

. that Trustee has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustee in order to be aware of
any reievant audit information and to establish that the charitable group's auditors are aware of that
information.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

AUDITORS

The auditors, Bishop Fleming LLP, are willing to continue in office and a resolutlon to appoint them will be
proposed at the annual general meeting.

The Trustees' Report mcorporatmg a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 11 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

L. Carver
Chair of Trustees
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Sheldon Schoo! has an effective
and appropriate System of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher as Accountlng Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the. requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in-the funding agreement between
Sheldon School and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsnble for reporting to the Board of
Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 6 times during the year.

Attendance d‘t]ring the.year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee . - : Meetings attended ~ Outof abpseible

M Jones, Chair

T G Jacques

N C B Spurdell, Head Teacher
D A L Andrews, Staff Trustee
N C Barnett -

C L Biggs -

S M Brentnall

L Carver, Chalr from 9 October 2019
C A Cradock-

C E Fowke

K E M Hathaway

C S Holden'

C J C Hiorns

E K Manzi, Staff Trustee

K M Pearce:

C Reynolds” .

K P Sayers -

T | Sparrow, Staff Trustee

P C T Story

J A Vosper

S D Walker

M S Wilson, Staff Trustee

NPRORAONONOODODDD 2RO 2NWOO OGO
OO ONIOOTOOTNDODODOOONNIAOOOOO®

The scope of work undertaken by the Board of Trustees in the past year has included:

- Staffing

- Curriculum .

- Premises

- Finance

- School Development Plan

- Safeguarding

- Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
- Health and Safety

- Funding

- Admissions
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

- Examination results
- Pupil Premium
- Marketing and fundraising :
- General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) )
. - Annual report from the Board of Trustees to the Sheldon Charters Board

- - Enrichment Fund

- School Council

- - School Funding campaign
- IT Digital Transformation strategy
- Catering and Cleaning contracts
- Sixth Form
- Library refurbishment project

The Trustees carried out skills audits for individual Trustees, committees and the Board of Trustees. The audlts
showed there was good coverage of the skills needed ’

Data is extensively used in each of the commlttees partlcularly in Curriculum. This is interrogated at each
meeting with a focus on the different pupil groups and checked again post-results. Finance data is rigorously
checked, with annual financial performance metrics reviewed every year by the Trustees against a statistically
similar selection of schools across the country to ensure relative parity and/or to highlight any anomalies
requiring further investigation or explanation. This forensic analysis of available benchmarking data and key
performance indicators has contributed to the school's healthy financial position at the end of this academic year.

‘Within Premises, energy data and other relevant costs .are widely discussed to ensure good value for money
within the services procured. Presentations are also made to the Board of Trustees on exam results and .
external survey returns; the Sheldon Charters Board also requires data to be included as part of the Trustees’
annual written report.

The Finance Committee is a sub-comimittee. of the main Board of Trustees. The purpose of the Finance
" Committee, which incorporates the role of an Audit Committee, is to ensure that the standards of financial control
and administration are adhered to, make fnanual plans including agreelng the draft budget, and monltor the
‘progress of income and expendlture e

. Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee ‘ . 'Meetin'gs attended Out of a possible

K E M Hathaway 6
M Jones
'K P Sayers

T | Sparrow

N C B Spurdell (Headteacher)
T J Jacques

hooouh

ADOOZOOO
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educatlonal‘
and wider sacietal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how-the Academy's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,

including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy has-
delivered improved value for money durlng the year by:

- Delivering positive educational outcomes for our students

- Collaborating with a neighbouring school to provide a broad and balanced Post 16 offer

- Working together with schools in'the North-Wiltshire Federation

- Employing and sharing PE teachers to support the Chippenham Sports Partnership

- Benchmarking of resources to assess best value

- Generating additional income by hiring out school facilities-outside of normal school hours

- Applying for external grants to improve the school's environments

- Awarding the catering and cleaning contracts to specialist suppliers following a rigorous tender process,

- Reviewing the Risk Protection Arrangement range of benefits and feedback from colleagues in other schools
before deciding to renew the school insurance cover with Zurich Insurance for the next 3 years .

- Requiring suppliers to compete on grounds of cost, quality and suitability of services

- Utilising budgeting and monitoring systems to regularly report to the Senior Management Team and Governors

- Adopting clearly defined schemes of delegation, purchasing and tender guidelines

- Maintaining and updating an academy risk register

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate aII risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It -can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to-identify = .
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and -
economically. The system of intérnal control has been in place in Sheldon School for the year 1 September 2018

to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and fmancral statements ’

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy's
significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report - and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of
Trustees.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.
In particular, it includes: :

. comprehensrve budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are.reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate :financial performance against the
forecasts and .of major purchase plans, capital works and expendlture programmes

o 'settlng targets to measure financial and other performance .

) clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital mvestment) guudellnes

o delegation of authority and segregation of duties ST S

e |dent|f|cat|on and management of risks o

The- Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific |nternal audit functlon and has decided not to
appoint an internal auditor. However, the Trustees have appomted Bishop Fleming LLP, the external auditors, to
perform addltlonal checks They report to J Vosper an appointed Trustee who in turn reports to the Board.

The mternal assurance visits includes giving advice on financial matters and performlng a rahge of checks on the
Academy's. flnanC|al systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:
- Incomie :
- Accounting systems
- Fixed assets
- Expenditure
- Payroll-
- IT procedures-
- Review of the reports given to Trustees

This functlon has been fuIIy delivered in line with the ESFA's reqmrements No matenal controI issues arising as
a result of this work have been identified. : ‘

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accountlng Officer, the Headteacher has respon5|blllty for- rewewmg the effectlveness of the system of

internal control. During'the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work of the external auditors;

e  the.work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responS|b|I|ty for the development and
mamtenance of the internal control framework.

- The Accounting Offlcer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the finance committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous |mprovement of the
system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 11 December 2019 and signed on their behalf
by:

L Carver : - ‘ N C B Spurdell, Headteacher
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Sheldon Scheol | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Board of
Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the funding agreement in
place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due regard to the reqmrements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2018

| conflrm that I and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to |dent|fy any material lrregular or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

"1 confirm that no instances of material irregularity, lmproprlety or fundlng ron- compllance have been discovered
to date. if any instances are identified after the date of 'this statement these will be notified to the Board of

'Trustees and ESFA.

No@wut

N C B Spurdell
Accounting Officer
) Date: 11 December 2019

we
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Group Strategic Report, Trustees' Report and the financial statements in .
accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (Unlted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and appllcable faw
and regulations. : :

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare fi nancial statements for each financial year. Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the charitable company and of their incoming: resources and
application of resources, including their income and expenditure, for that period. In prepanng these financial
statements, the Trustees are reqmred to:” : .

. select suitable accountlng poI|C|es and then apply them consistently;

) observe the methods. and pnncuples of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon -
2018 to 2019;

) make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

) state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained.in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statéments on the gomg concern basis unless it is mapproprlate to presume that the‘

group will continue in busmess

The Trustees are responsible for-keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain’
the Group and the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding.the assets of the
Group and the charitable company and hence for tak|ng reasonable steps for the prevention and detectlon of:
fraud and other |rregular|t|es :

The Trustees are responS|bIe for ensuring that. in their conduct and operation the Group and the charltable
company apply financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been,
applied for the purposes mtended . .

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the group's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dlssemmatlon
- of financial statements may dlffer from legislation in other jurisdictions. . o

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 11 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:: .

L Carver
Chair of Trustees
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SHELDON SCHOOL ‘

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Sheldon School (the 'parent Academy') and its subsidiaries (the
'‘Group') for the year ended 31 August 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities,
the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Academy-Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and
the related notes, including a summary of significant accaunting policies. The financial reporting frameworl that
has been applied in their preparation-is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019
issued by the Educatlon & Sktlls Funding Agency

In our opinion the financial statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent Academy's affalrs as'at 31 August
2019 and of the Group's incoming resources and application of resources, mcludmg its .income and
expenditure for the year then ended; - o g

) have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountlng
Practice; and , o : .

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 the Charities SORP
2015 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Educatlon & Skills- Fundlng
Agency.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit.of the financial statements in the United Klngdom .including the
Financial Reporting Council's. Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical résponsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and
appropriate to prowde a basis-for our opinion. P .

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

We have nothing to report in respect of, the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) requ1re us to
report to you where:

) the Trustees' use of the gomg concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the fnanaal statements is
not appropriate; or . . .
. the Trustees have not disciosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may

cast significant doubt about the Group's or the parent Academy's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

" INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SHELDON SCHOOL (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. Other information

.. includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report, and the

Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does ‘not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. .

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our

- knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
" misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

- "OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: ‘

) the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
o the financial statements are prepared is consistent wrth the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requrrements
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

" In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent Academy and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report
including the Strategic Report. :

"~ We have nothing to report in respect of the foIIowmg matters in reIatlon to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

., the parent Academy has not kept adequate accounting records, or returns adequate for our audit have not
‘ been received from branches not visited by us; or .

. e ° the parent Academy financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SHELDON SCHOOL (CONTINUED)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Académy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether .
due to fraud or error. . -

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent
Academy's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

. using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Group or the
parent Academy or to cease operations, or have no re'alistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectlves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
- from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or érror, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our "
- opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is'not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
- ‘accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, mdrvrdually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be - -

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org. uk/audrtorsresponsrb;lrtles This description forms part of our .
Auditors' Report :

USE OF OUR REPORT

- This report is made solely to the Academy's members; as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members -
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditers' Report and for no other purpose.-To the fullest -
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its -
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. :

@r@ L/ ﬁ ('"\, s
Joseph Scaife FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of

Bishop.Fleming LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors

16 Queen Square

Bristol .
BS14NT"

Date: 'Dr'l\,'tq
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO SHELDON
SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 28 February 2019 and further to the requirements
of the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to
2019, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Sheldon School during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorltles which
govern them. . :

This report is made solely to Sheldon School and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement'
letter. Our work has:been undertaken so that we might state to Sheldon School and ESFA those matters we are
required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than Sheldon School and ESFA, for our: work for thls report or for the
conclusion we have formed . :

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF SHELDON SCHOOL'S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND THE
REPORTING ACCOUNTANT : .

The Accounting Officer is responsrble under the requirements of Sheldon School's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 28.March 2011 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1
September 2018, for. ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the- purposes
intended by Parllament and the fi nanmal transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our respon5|b|llt|es for th|s engagement are established in the United Klngdom by our professmns ethical
guidance and -are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our- engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

APPROACH

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direotion 2018-to 2019 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. -

The objective. of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to prowde us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all 3|gn|fcant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a posmve opinion.

Our engagement includes exammatlon on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regulanty and proprlety of the
Academy's income and expendlture ' .

Our work on regularity included a.review. of the internal controls policies and procedures that have been
implemented and an assessment of their design and effectiveness to understand how the academy complied
with the framework of authorities. We also reviewed the reports commissioned by the trustees to assess the
internal controls throughout the year. :

We performed detailed testing based on our assessment of the risk of material irregularity, impropriety and non-

compliance. This work was integrated with our.audit on the financial statements where appropriate and included
analytical review and detailed substantive testing of transactions.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO SHELDON
SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

CONCLUSION

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which sﬁggeét in all material respects the

expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2018 to-31-August 2018 has not been

applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them. .

gél,w %&s«) L(//

Joseph Scalfe FCA DChA (Repor_tmg Accountant) for and on behalf of

Bishop Fleming LLP .
16 Queen Square
Bristol '

BS1 4NT

Date: ,%{(L’l‘\
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND

EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

FORWARD

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted- fixed asset Total Total
funds " funds funds funds funds
2019 . 2019 2019 2019 2018 .
Note S A £ £ £ £
INCOME FROM:
* Donations and capital o R
grants 4 R 33,220 259,877 293,097 306,541 .
~ Charitable activities 238,208 ~ ° 8,637,404 . - 8,875,612 9,012,345
" Other trading activities 222,280 - - 222,280 189,549 . A
Investments 7 9,655 - - 9,655 4626
TOTAL INCOME 470,143 - 8,670,624 259,877 9,400,644 9,513,061.
EXPENDITURE ON: S T
" *'Raising funds 127,955 . - - 127,955 131,894 - -
" Charitable activities 584,830 . _8,924,997 - 533,822 10,043,649 9,628,_711
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 712,785 8,924,997 533,822 10,171,604 9,760,605
NET EXPENDITURE (242,642) ,(254,3?3) (273,945) (770,860) ' (247,544)
4 "'I"Vransfers between funds 20 18,980 83,373 (102,353) - -
- NET MOVEMENT IN
FUNDS BEFORE ,
* OTHER RECOGNISED : — :
" GAINS/(LOSSES) (223,662) (171,000) - (376,298) (770,960) (247,544)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on
defined benefit pension o .
schemes 25 - _(671 ,000) - (671,000) 608,000
N,E:aNMI%VEMENTIN (223,662) _4‘(842,0.00_) (376,298)  (1,441,960) 360,456
RECONCILIATION OF
FUNDS:
Total funds brought S -
forward 1,240,275 (361,000) 22,623,988 23,503,263 23,142,807
Net movement in funds (223,662) (842,000) (376,298)  (1,441,960) 360,456
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED 1,016,613  (1,203,000) 22,247,690 22,061,303 23,503,263

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 28 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
REGISTERED NUMBER:07556236

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets

.CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors
- Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIAB!LITIES

Creditors: amounts falling due after more thaﬁ'
one year

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION
. LIABILITY ' :

Defined benefit pension scheme Iiability

TOTAL NET ASSETS

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds

Pension reserve

" Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

TOTAL FUNDS

Note

14

16

17

18

25

20
20

20
20

2019
£
22,277,198
22,277,198
298,800
1,268,472
1,567,272
(564,167)
1,003,105
23,280,303
(16,000)
23,264,303
(1,203,000)
22,061,303
22,247,690
(1,203,000)
21,044,690
1,016,613

22,061,303

2018
£
- 22,663,831
22,663,831
443,014
1,820,858 ..
2,263,872
(1,045,440)
1,218,432,
23,882,263 *
(18,000)
23,864,263
(361,000)
23,503,263
22,623,988 .
(361,000)
22,262,988
1,240,275

23,503,263

The financial statements on pages 24 to 56 were' approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 11 ‘

December 2019 and are signed on their behalf, by:

e

"L Carver
. Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 28 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)
REGISTERED NUMBER:07556236

ACADEMY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 '

2019 2018

Note £ £
FIXED ASSETS . o
Tangible assets - 14 22,277,198 22,663,831
Investmerits - © - 15 AT B : 1
ST 22,277,199 < 22,663,832
CURRENT ASSETS o
Debtors = - o 16 300040 - - 517,781
Cash at bank and in hand , 1,265,637 S 1,741,279
1,565,677 . - . 2,259,060
Creditors: amounts falling due within one R ‘
year . . . . 17 (562,573). . (1,040,629)
NET CURRENT ASSETS" 1,003,104 - 1,218,431
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT - _
‘LIABILITIES 23,280,303 - - 23,882,263
Creditors: amounts falling due after more .
than one year 18 " (16,000) . (18,000)
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING. PENSION _ _
LIABILITY 23,264,303 23,864,263
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 25 (1_,:203,‘000) (361,000)
TOTAL NET ASSETS - 22,061,303 - 23,503,263
FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY
'Restricted funds: ’ S
Fixed asset funds : ‘ 20 22,247,690 o 4'22,623,988.
Pension reserve  : . 20 (1,203,000) } C (361,000)
Total restricted funds - 20 21,044,690 22,262,988
Unrestricted income ‘fu‘nds 20 ’ 1,016,613 ) 1,240,275
TOTAL FUNDS - 22,061,303 23,503,263

The financial statements on pages 24 to 56 were approved by the Trustees; .and authorised for issue on 11
December 2019 and are sqgned on their behalf, by:

Lo

L Carver
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 28 to 56 form part of these financial statements.
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SHELDON SCHOOL '
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash (used-in)/provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CHANGE IN CASH.”AN'D CASH EQUIVALENTS IN THE YEAR
Cash'a.hd, caéh equivalents at the beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEARl f

The n‘otes'f‘on pages 28 to 56 form part of these financial statements
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c 2019 2018
‘Note . £ £
22 (645,414) 823,439
23 © 93,028 (875,930)
(552,386) (52,491)

1,820,858 1,873,349

' :24 1,268,472 1,820,858




SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

A summary of the principat accounting policies adopted (which have been applied eonsistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.-

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Academy have been prepared under the historic cost convention in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to
charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts
Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006

Sheldon School meets the deflmtlon of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.
The Consolldated Statement of FlnanC|aI Activities (SOFA) and Balance Sheet consolidate the
financial statements of the Academy and its subsidiary undertaking. The results of the subsudlary are

consolidated on a line by Ime baS|s

The Academy has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under section 408 of .the’ Companles

" Act 2006 and has not presented its own Statement of Financial Activities in these financial

statements.
GOING CONCERN

The Trustees assess whether the_use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any

material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of

the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of -a

period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and -
have concluded that the Academy -has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for

the foreseeable future ard thefe are no material uncertainties about the Academy's ability to continue

as a going concern, thus they contlnue to adopt the going concern basis of accountlng in preparlng

the financial statements. : 4 S .
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

13

1.4

1.5

INCOME

All incoming res'ourcefs are recognised when the Academy has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is _
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are mcluded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities on a recelvable basis. The
balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period-is shown in ‘the
relevant funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance ‘of meeting any
performance- related . g:ondlt_lons there is not unconditional entittement to-the income and its..
recognition is deferred and .included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related
conditions are met. Where entitiement occurs before income is received, the income.is accrued. . -

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities in the
year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and.
recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are r_e‘cogniséd in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant: Unspent
amounts of capital grants are refliected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognlsed on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related condltlons)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured. ’

EXPENDITURE

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer-economic benefit
to a third party; it.is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and .
the amount of the obligatio_n can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs .
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent wuth
the use of resources.

Expenditure on ra‘is'ing funds -
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Group to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of aII fundraising activities events and non-charitabie trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Group's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Group apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
INTEREST RECEIVABLE
Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured

reliably by the Group; this’is normally upon.notification of the interest paid or payabie by the institution
with whom the funds are deposited.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.6 TAXATION

17

The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act

2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charltable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordlngly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxatlon in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the. extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes. .

'fANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Assets costing £3,000 or more are capitalised as tahgible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of

depreciation and any provision for impairment

Where tangible fixed assets have been acqwred with the aid of specific grants, either from the

" government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and

’depremated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
" the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are. credited to a restricted

" fixed asset fund in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the

Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset
fund in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acqmred with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Deprecnatlon is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a basis over its expected useful
life, as follows:

Freehold property - Straight line over 50 years
 Furniture and fixtures - 20% straight'line

- Plant and equipment - 25% reducing balance

‘Computer equipment - 33% straight line

" A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carr'ied'out-if events or changes in circumstances indicate

1.8

that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
 value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised ‘as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities.

DEBTORS

Trade and other debtors with no stated interest rate and due within one year are recorded at the -

" amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be received. Prepayments are valued at the

1.9

amount paid.

CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account and
cash on deposit that has a notice period of less han 30 days.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.10 LIABILITIES

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

"1.11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group only holds basic financial in's'tru'me'nts as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Group and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the Academy's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and’is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detdiled in notes 17 and. 18. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the Academy's wholly
owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

1.12 PENSIONS

Retirement benefits to employees of the Group are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme

. ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS").‘These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contrlbutlons are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Group in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Group in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially

.and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the

current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined

benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities and

comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by
the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the
scheme assets and the actual return on the acher‘re assets is recogmseo in other recognlsed gains

* and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.13 FUND ACCQUNTING

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Group at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds compnse all other restricted funds received with restnctlons |mposed by the
funder/donor and lnclude grants from the DfE Group. o .

1.14 INVESTMENTS '
Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost less provision for impairment.
1.15 OPERATING LEASES -

Rentals pald under operatlng leases are charged to the Consohdated Statement of Fmancnal
Activities on a stralght line basis over the lease term. :

1.16 AGENCY ARRANGEME NTS

The Academy acts as an agent in distributing 16 - 19 bursary funds from ESFA Payments received ‘
from ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the Statement of Financial
Activities as the Academy does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The
Academy can .use.up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. The funds received, pald and any balances held
at period end are disclosed in Note 30. .

2. GENERAL INFORMATIQN

Sheldon School is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales. The registered
office is Hardenhuish Lane, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN14 6HJ. : '
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDGMENT

Estimates and judgments are contlnually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, .including expectahons of future events that are believed  to be reasonable under the

cwcumstances
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resultlng accountmg
estimates and assumptlons will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that- have a sngnlﬂcant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of
. assets and llabllmes within the next financial year are discussed below '

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme deflned benefit liability depends on a
number of .factors- that are. determined on an actuarial basis using -a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions: used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the ‘discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptlons which are disclosed in note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from.the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing.the pensions liability at 31
August 2019. Any differences between the figures derived from the' roll forward’ approach and a full
actuarial. valuatlon would |mpact on the carrymg amount of the pension I|ab|I|ty ’ .

4. INCOME #ROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Restricted = Total .  Total

funds - funds funds

2019 . 2019 2018

‘ £ £

Donations = - . G < 33220 . 33220 65193
Capital Grants - 250877 259871 - 241,348

293 097 . 293 097 306 541
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SHELDON SCHOOL

(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES Tb THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

5.

FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

DfE/ESFA Grants
~ General Annual Grant
... Other DfE/EFSA grants

- Other Government grants

High Needs
Other government grants: capital

-Other funding

Internal catering income
Income for hosting trainee teachers
Sales to students

School trips and other income

. TOTAL 2018

22992

INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES '

Lettings
External catering
Other

Sheldon School Trading Limited trading income

. Unrestricted Restricted Total Total -
funds funds " funds funds
2019 2019 2019 ' 2018
£ £ £ f
- 7.999454 7,999,454 8,063,743 "
- 279,428 279,428 289,082 - -
- 8,278,882 8,278,882 8,352,825
- 342,266 342,266 288,596 -
- 16,256 16,256
- 358,522 358,522 311 ,538. .
. 40,660 - 40,660 18,899"
10,259 - 10,259 10,300 -
20,487 - 20,487 65,374
166,802 - 166,802 253,359
238,208 - 8,637,404 8,875,612 9,0_‘12,345
_ 347,932",‘ 8,664,413 9,012,345
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2018
£ £ £
210 210 301
71,549 71,549 69,497
38,473 38,473 22,614
112,048 112,048 97,137
222,280 222,280 189,549
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

7. INVESTMENT INCOME

Page 35

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2018
£ £ £
Bank interest 9,655 9,655 4,626 .
8. EXPENDITURE
.Other Total Total
2019 2019 12018 -
£ £ U
Lettings and external catering expe'nées': o
- Direct costs 127,955 127,955 131 ,8’94'
Education: _
- Direct costs 7,973,446 7,973,446 7,8i 5',609 a
- Support costs 2,070,203 2,070,203 1,813,102
10,171,604 10,171,604 ~9;760‘,605‘ _
9. 'ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES -
T ] ActiVities .
undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
© 2019 2019 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
‘Education 7,973,446 2,070,203 10,043,649 9,628,711
TOTAL 2018 7,815,609 1,813,102 9,628,711



SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

9. ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Analyéis of direct costs

Total Total

funds funds

2019 2018

£ £

Pension income A ' .. 7,000 14,000
Staff costs o o . - . 6,627,640 6,475,308
Depreciation ' - 512,464 478,661
Educational supplies’ : 404,709 431,643
Examination fees. : - . R 157,621 156,414
: Staff delv-ellopm’entv . : ' T i ._,22,8171' 14,870

Other costs 244,141 244,713

7,973,446 7,815,609
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

10.

ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Analysis of support costs

Pension income.

- Staff costs

Depreciation '
Educational supplies
Other costs ’

-Recruitment and su pport
Maintenance of premises and equipment
.. Cleaning-

Rent and rates
Energy costs '
Insurance '
Security and transport
Catering

Technology cb_sts )
Office overheads
Legal and professional

* Bank interest and.charges

NET EXPENDITURE

Net expenditufe for the year includes:

Operating Iease"fentéls
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditors for:

- audit

- other services
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Total Total
funds funds
2019 2018

£ £
5,000 7,000
727,978 691,717
50,673 47,330
776 -
12,743 4,531
. 58,878 85,799
400,237 227,541
150,434 143,393
72,973 79,082
124,513 116,402
44,948 48,124
56,151 19,524
61,810 44,954
140,503 144,259
141,485 139,159
20,689 13,922
412 365
2,070,203 1,813,102
2019 2018

£ £
16,186 16,186
563,137 525,991
10,350 10,150
2,550 2,499




SHELDON SCHOOL .
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

11. STAFF COSTS

a. STAFF COSTS

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Group Group Academy Academy -

2019 2018 2019 2018
_ : S £ £ £ £
Wages and salaries Lo 5,686,947 5,612,476 5,686,947 5,512,476
Social security costs . S P 498,423 501,224 498,423 501,224
Pension costs R ‘ 1,170,248 1,153,325 1,170,248 1,153,325 A

' 7,355618 7,167,025 7,355,618 7,167,025

Staff restructuring costs comprise: - .

. Group Group Académy' ACédémy .

©2019 2018 . 2019 S 2018.
. | £ £ £ £
Severance payments . - 14,350 - 14,350
- 14,350 - 14,350

b. STAFF NUMBERS

The average number of persons embloyéd_ 'b-y the Group and the Academy during the year Wés aé .

follows:

" Group . Group Academy Academy ‘

2019 2018 2019 - 2018 -
No. No. No. No. .-

Teachers | : 117 113 17 113
Admin and support ' ' - 108 107 108 107
Management ' " o ‘ 7 7 7 T

232 227 232 227
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

11.

STAFF COSTS (CONTINUED)
b. STAFF NUMBERS (CONTINUED)

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:

Group . Group

2019 . 2018

. . . No. .~ No

Teachers o ' , ‘ 108 101
Admin and support . - L 58 - 56
Management P : 7 7

173 164
The average full time equwalent for teachers has increased due to several members of staff bemg on
maternity leave in the year ended 31 August 201 9. :
c. HIGHER PAID STAFF =

The number of employees whbse erhblo'yée benefits (excluding employer pension costs)' exceeded
£60,000 was:

Group® . Group

2019 2018

I No. . No.

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 - _ 1 2

In the band £100,001 - £110,000 - - 1
In the band £110,001 - £120,000 . " - - 1 -

d. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees (who do not receive remuneratlon
for their role as Trustees) and the Senior Management Team as listed on page 1. The total amount of
employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer's national insurance
contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy was £551,046
(2018: £578,539). As staff Trustees are not remunerated in respect of their role as a Trustee, where staff
trustees do not form part of the key management personnel other than in their role -as Trustee, their
remuneration as set out in note 12 has not been included in the total benefits recelved by key
management personnel above.

' Page 39



SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

12.

13.

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

The Headteacher and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide

- undertaking the roles.of the Headteacher and staff not in respect of their. services as Trustees. Other
" . Trustees did not receive any payments, other than expenses, from-the Academy in respect of their role

as Trustees. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows: N C Spurdell:
remuneration £105,000 - £110,000 (2018: £105,000. - £110,000), employer's pension contributions
£15,000 - £20,000 (2018: £15,000 - £20,000), D Andrews: remuneration .£20,000 - £25,000 (2018:
£20,000 - £25,000), employer's pension contributions £5,000 - £10,000 (2018: £5,000 - £10,000), T

‘Sparrow: remuneration £35,000 - £40,000 (2018: £35,000 - £40,000), employer's pension contributions
- £5,000 - £10,000 (2018: £5,000 - £10,000), S Wilson £50,000 - £55,000 (2018: £50,000 - £55,000),
" employer's pension contributions £5,000 - £10,000 (2018: £5,000 - £10,000); E K Manzi; remuneration

£40,000 - £45,000 (2018: £40,000 - £45,000), employer's pensnon contributions £5,000 ~ £10,000 (2018:
£5,000 - £10,000), A Douglas; remuneration £50,000 - .£55,000 (2018: £Nil), employer's pension
contnbutlons £5,000 - £10,000 (2018: £Nil); S Sellwoodl remuneration £5,000 - £10,000 (2018: £Nil),

. employers pension contnbutlons £0 - £5,000 (2018: £N|I) N Cooke remuneration £10,000 - £15,000

(2018 £Nil), employers pension contributions £Nil (2018 £N|l)

. Durlng the year no Trustee received any beneflts in klnd (2018 £N|I)

Durlng the year ended 31 August 2019, expenses totalllng £2,518 were reimbursed or paid directly to 9
Trustees (2018 - £2,556 to 11 Trustees). .

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 28.

TRUSTEES AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

The Group has opted into the Department of Education's’ nsk protectlon arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover ‘losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees'and officers from claims arising from negligént acts, errors ‘or omissions occurring whilst on

_academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
. offcers |ndemn|ty element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membershlp :
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14.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

GROUP AND ACADEMY

COST OR VALUATION
At'1 September 2018

- Additions’

At 31 August 2019

- DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2018
- Charge for the year

At 31 August 2019

NET BOOK VALUE

. At 31'August 2019

" At 31 August 2018

Furniture - .

Freehold - - and Plant and Computer
property equipment machinery equipment Total
£ : ' £ £
25,437,282 . 344,158 -122,556 466,936 26,370,932
10,092 163,175 - 3,237 176,504
25,447,374 507,333 122,556 470,173 26,547,436
3,004,554 247,9i'6' ' 63,046 391,585 3,707,101
440,405 52,559 11,230 58,943 563,137
3,444,959 300,475 74,276 450,528 4,270,238
22,002,415 : 206,858 ‘ 48,280 19,645 22,277,198
22,432,728 96-,242 . 59,510 75,351 22,663,831
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15. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Investments

. in
subsidiary
. : . companies
Academy L , o , o £
COST ORVALUATION o o
At 1 September-2018 ° S A
AT 31 AUGUST 2019 . ©~ . = T 1
NET BOOK VALUE
AT 31 AUGUST 2018 - - . . . ST o
AT 31 AUGUST 2018~ - R 1
16. DEBTORS
Group Group ~ Academy . Academy
2019 2018 . .- 2019 2018
. - £ £ ’  £‘;', R 3
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR , R
Trade debtors o 31,771 27,015 22576 16,599
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 10,474 88,102
Other debtors ) 5,393 41,383 5,354 41,344
Prepayments and accrued income | 143,130 261,060 143,130, . 258,180
Tax recoverable : ‘ i 118,506 113,556 118,506 - 113,556

298,800 443,014 300.,040. . 517,781
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17. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Group Group  'Academy Academy

2019 2018 . - 2019 2018

. £ £ : £ £
ESFAloans = - - 2,000 2‘,00_0 . 2,000 2,000
Trade creditors L : ' 232,523 565,076 232,254 565,076
Other taxation and social security 132,556 131,026 . 132,556 131,026
Other creditors- _ S 124,929 129,882 B 124-,92_9 ’ 129,882
Accruals and deferred income’ 72,159 217,456 70,834 212,645

564,167  1,045440 562,573 1,040,629

Group Group ~ Academy. Academy

2019 2018 2019 2018

Deferred income. © - S ‘
Deferred income at 1 -September 2018 80,390 70,187. 80;390 70,187
Resources deferred during the year 2,881 80,390 . 2,881 80,390
Amounts released from previous periods (80,390) - (70,187) (80,390) (70,187)
2,881 80,390 . 2,881 - 80,390

At the Balance Sheet date the Academy was holding funds received from the Local Authonty relatlng to
the 2019-20 academlc year and money recelved for trips taking place in 2019-20

18. CREDITORS:‘AM'OUN:TS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR -

Group Group . Academy Academy

2019 2018 : 2019 2018
_ £ £ £ £
ESFA loans L 16,000 18,000 16,000 18,000

The aggregate amount of hablhtles payable or repayable wholly or in part more than five years after the
reporting date is: )

Group Group : Academy Academy

2019 2018 - 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Payable or»repayable by instalments - " 8,000 10,'000 ‘ 8,000 - 10,000

8,000 10,000 . 8,000 'i0,000 ‘

Included above is a Condition Improvement Fund loan of £20,000 repayable over 10 years commencing -
September 2018 with an applicable annual interest rate of 1.85%.
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19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group Group Academy Academy
2019 . - 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
- FINANCIAL ASSETS ‘
Financial assets that are debt instruments R -
measured at amortised cost - 1,365,905 ° 2,043,925 1,364,349 2,039,152
- .. Group - Group Academy Academy
v 2019 . 2018 2019 2018 .
o £ : £ £ £
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities measured at amortised o - : :
cost . (292,0’00) (730,837) (290,406) (726,026)

Financial éssets that are debt instruments measured _é{ am'or"tised cost comprise cash at bank, trade ‘

debtors and accrued income. : '

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, accruals and other creditors.
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20.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS

UNRESTRICTED
FUNDS

General funds

- Fixed assets

Sheldon School
Trading Limited

RESTRICTED

" GENERAL FUNDS

General Annual Grant

(GAG)
High Needs
Donations

. Pupil Premium

Other LA funding

Y7 Literacy and
Numeracy Catch Up

~Other ESFA income

Pension reserve

Balance at

Brought o Transfers Gains/ 31 August
forward - Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) © 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £
1,200,432 . ~ 358,095  (604,248) 32,826 - 987,105
39,843 . (29,315) 18,980 - 29,508
- 112,048 (79,222)  (32,826) - -
1,240,275 ~ 470,143 (712,785) 18,980 - 1,016,613
- 8,022,748 (81106,21) 83373 ; -
- 251,362 (251,362) - - -
- 33,220 (33,220) - - -
- 232,825 .. (232,825) - - -
- "16,256 (16,256) - - -
- 16,609  ° (16,609) - - -
- . 97,604 . . (97,604) - - L.l
(361,000 . -~ - (171,000) - (671,000)  (1,203,000)
(361,000) 8,670,624  (8,924,997) 83,373 (671,000 (1,_203,000)
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20. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Balance at 1 . » Balance at
September Transfers - Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2019

£ £ £ < £ £ £

RESTRICTED FIXED
ASSET FUNDS . -

Fixed essets _
- transferred on . S
conversmn o 19,181,554 _ - (369,338) - (2,130) . - 18,810,086

Fixed as,sets S
purchased from
GAG and other

restricted funds - 1,723,113 - (120,980) E 245,556. o - 1,847,689
DfE/ESFA Capital e
grants . 1,684,317 259,877 (42,655) - (349,623) - . - 1,551,916
LA Capital grants . 35,004 - (849) . 3844 . - 37,999
22,623,088 259,877  (533,822) (102,353) - 22,247,690
TOTAL RESTRICTED A ' 4
FUNDS .. 22,262,988 8,930,501 (9,458,819) - (18,980)  (671,000) 21,044,690
TOTAL FUNDS .~ - 23,503,263 9,400,644 10,171 604) .- (671,000) 22,061,303

The specifie burposes-fer which the funds are to be applied are as follows: .' o

RESTRICTED FUNDS

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents funding recelved from the Educatlon Funding Agency
(ESFA) during the period in order to fund the continuing activities of the school. During the year, £245,087
(2017; £14,976) was transferred to the restricted fixed asset fund to represent fixed assets purchased
from GAG,

ngh Needs fundmg, which includes Named Pupil Allowance and YPSS fundlng, i$ paid by the Local
Authorlty to cater for puplls with learning difficulties and other disabilities.

Donatlons represent amounts raised through fundraising for specific purposes and various smaII restricted
donations which have all been spent during the period.

Pupil pfemium funding represents amounts received from the ESFA to caterufor disadvan'taged pupils.

Other LA funding represents amounts received from Wiltshire Council and other Local Authorities in
respect of Pupil Premium for Looked After Children.

Y7 Literacy and Numeracy Catch Up represents funding to support year 7 pupils that did not achieve level
4 in reading or mathematics at Key Stage 2.

Other ESFA income represents amounts received from the ESFA to cover rates expenditure of the’
school.

"The pension reserve represents the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit.’
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20.

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED) -

FIXED ASSET FUNDS '
Fixed assets transferred on conversion represent the buuldlnq and equment donated to the school from
Wlltshlre Council on conversion to an Academy.

Fixed assets purchased from GAG and other restricted funds represent amounts spent on fixed assets
from the GAG fundlng received from the ESFA and other sources.

DfE/ESFA Capital grants includes devolved capital fundlng and amounts received frorn the Academies

: Capltal Malntenance Fund and Condition Improvement Fund.

LA Capltal grants represents funding received from Wiltshire County Councﬂ

' OTHER INFORMATION

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2019. T :
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20. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

UNRESTRICTED
FUNDS

General funds
Fixed assets

Sheldon School
Trading
Limited

RESTRICTED
GENERAL
FUNDS

General Annual
Grant (GAG)

" High Needs
Donations ‘
Pupil Premium
Other LA funding

Y7 Literacy and
Numeracy
Catch Up

Other ESFA
income

Pension reserve

Balance at

Balance at - ‘

1 September . o Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2017 . Income - Expenditure infout (Losses) 2018
£ £ £ £ £ £
1133293 . 444970 - (396,802) 18,971 ; 1,200,432
53374 - . (13,531) - - £39,843.

- 97,137 . (78,166) (18,971) - -
1,186,667 . 542107 . (488,499) . - 1,240275 ..

141,820 - 8,063,743  (7,960,476)  (245,087) - -

- . 288596 ' (288,596) - - -

2,140 < -65193 . - (67,333) - -

- 233720 . (233720) - - -

13,500 22,992 (36,492) - - -

- 16692 (16,692) - - -

- 38670°  (38,670) - - -
- (784,000) - (185,000) - 608,000 (361,000)
(626,540) 8,729,606 (8,759,646)  (312,420) 608,000 . (361,000)
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20. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (CONTINUED)

RESTRICTED
FIXED ASSET
FUNDS

Fixed assets
transferred on
conversion

Fixed assets
purchased
from GAG and
other restricted
funds

DfE/ESFA
Capital grants

LA Capital
grants

TOTAL
RESTRICTED
FUNDS

TOTAL FUNDS

21. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year
Creditors due in more than one year

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ - 31 August
2017 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2018
oL S £ £ £ £
19,551,'1'92 - (369,638) - - 19}181,554,
1,518,932 - - (108,239) 312,420 - 1,723,113
1,476,703 © . 241,348 (33,734) - - 1,684,317-
35,853 - (849) ; ; 35:004
22,582,680 .2441,348' (512,460) 312,420 - 22,623,988 -
21956140 8,970,954  (9.272,106) . 608,000 22,262,988
23142807 9,513,081  (8,760,605) ; 608,000 23,503,263
ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - CURRENT YEAR
. Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
- funds funds funds funds -
2019 2019 2019 2019 .
£ £ £ £
29,508 - 22247690 22,277,198
987,105 580,167 - 1,567,272
- (564,167) - (564,167)
- (16,000) - (16,000)
- (1,203,000) - (1,203,000)

Pension reserve

TOTAL

1,016,613
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21.‘ "ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS (CONTINUED)
.ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR
o . Restricted
Unrestricted - Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2018
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 39;_843 I 22,623,988 22,663,831
"CurrentAassets 1,596,234 A '234,192 433,446 2,263,872
Cre,ditofs due within one year (377,802) (234,192') (433,446) (1,045,440)
-~ Creditors due in more than one year (18,000) . - = | - (18,000)
“Pension reserve - (361 ,OQO) - (361,000)
TQTAL 1,24’0,275.' . (:?61,000) 22,623,988 23,503,263
22. RECONCILIATION OF NET EXPENDITURE TO NET CA'SH‘F‘L’QW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

' ADJUSTMENTS FOR:
: Deprematlon

Capital. grants from DfE and other capital income
Interest receivable

- Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable '

Deflned benefit pension scheme finance cost
Decrease.in debtors
(Decrease)/increase in creditors
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';Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities)

'NET-CASH (USED IN)/PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2019 2018
£ £
(770,960)  (247,544)
563,137 525,991
(259,877)  (241,348)
(9,655) (4,626)

. 159,000 164,000
12,000 21,000
144,214 137,506
(483,273) 468,460
(645,414) 823,439
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23,

24,

25,

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Group Group

2019 2018

. . _ £ I

Dividends, interest and rents from investments o ' 9,655 4,626

) PurchaSe of tangible fixed assets . R (176,504) (1,121,904)

Capital grants from DfE / ESFA o o 259,877 241,348

'NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 93,028 (875,930)
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A

Group Group

2019 2018

Cash in hand .o [ 1,268,472 1,820,858

" TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - . IR 1,268,472 1,820,858

' PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Wlltshlre County Councnl Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

- The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31

March 2016.

Contrlbutlons amounting to £94,092 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2019 (2018 - £94,029)
and are included within creditors.

TEACHERS' PENSION SCHEME

‘The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statdtory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by

the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in’ part-time employment following
appointment or a change of contract, aithough they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a 'pay as you go' basis - these contributions
along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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25,

PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
VALUATION OF THE TEACHERS' PENSION SCHEME

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest-actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Diréctions 2014. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of
the valuation and subsequent consultatron are: .

. employer contnbutlon rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (mcludmg a 008% employer .

administration charge)

. total scheme liabilities (pensmns currently in payment and the estlmated cost of future benefts) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estlmated future contributions
together with the notlonal investments held at the valuation date) of £196 100 m|II|on g|vmg a
notional past service def|C|t 'of £22,000 million .

. an employer.cost cap. of 10° 9% of pensionable pay wili be applied to future valuatlons

o the assumed real rate.of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earmngs The rate
of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 4.45%.

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September .

2015. The latest valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme has now taken place, in line with directions
issued by HM Treasury and using membership data as at 31 March 2016. As a result of this valuation TPS
employers will pay an increased contribution rate of 23.68% from 1 September 2019 (this mcludes the
administration levy of 0:08%). .

The employers penS|on costs pard to TPS in the year amounted to £731,460 (2018 £718 218)

A copy of the valuatlon report and supportmg documentation is on the Teachers' Pens;ons websrte

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pensron scheme The '

Group has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contrlbutron scheme. The
Group has set out above the |nformat|on available on the scheme. : :

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME
The LGPS is a funded defmed beneﬂt pension scheme, with the assets heId in separate trustee-

administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2019 was £345,000 (2018 -
£339,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £278,000 (2018 - £271,000) and employees'

contributions totalled £ 67,000 (2018 - £68,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 24.9

per cent for employers and 5. 5- 8.5 per cent for employees.
Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the

event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme llabllltles would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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25. PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2018 . 2018

. | % %
Rate of increase in salaries - . .o 26 27
Rate of increase for pensions in payment /.inflation 23 24

Discount rate for scheme liabilities - o 18- . 24

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: : :

2019 2018

Years - Years
Retiring today _ o ' ‘ o
Males . . 214 225
Females . S : 237 249
Retiring in 20 years B o
Males : 223 241
Females o o _ ’ A_25.1A- : 26.7
Sensitivity analysis
2019 .. 2018
. ' £000 . £000
Discount rate -0.5% ‘ : . " 74-9‘,‘ 572
Salary increase +0.5% S ‘ 103 91
Pension increase +0.5% R 631 - 475

The Group's share of the assets in the scheme was:

‘At 31 At 31 August

August 2019 . 2018
Equities ' L ' 3,701,000 3,322,090
Bonds : , 730,000 - 655,060
Property 678,000 608,270
Cash o - - 104,000 93,580 .
Total market value of assets . 5,213,000 4,679,000

The actualiretu'rn on scheme assets was £271,000 (2018 - £374,000).
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25,

PENSION COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Actiyities are as follows:

2018

£

2019
£ £
Current service cost (416,000) (435,000)
Past service cost (21,000) -
. A‘Interest income 134,000 105,000
. Interest cost (146,000)  (126,000)
- Total (449,000) (456,000)
Changes in the present value of thé defined .bAenefit obligations were as follows:
2019 2018
£
-At 1 September 5,040,000 4,866,000
Current service cost 416,000 435,000
Interest cost 146,000 126,000
Employee contributions 67,000 68,000
Actuarial losses / gains 855,000 (337,000)
.Benefits paid (129,000) (118,000)
. Past service costs 21,000 -
At 31 August 6,416,000 5,040,000.
- Changes in the fair value of the Group's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2019 2018
’ £ £
At 1 September 4,679,000 4,082,000
Interest income 134,000 105,000
- Actuarial gains 184,000 271,000
Employer contributions 278,000 271,000
Employee contributions 67,000 68,000
Benefits paid ' (129,000) (118,000)

At 31 August 5,213,000
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26.

27.

28.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2019 the Group and the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Group Group
2019 2018
£ £
Group and Academy , .
Not later than 1 year s 15,481 16,186
Later than 1 year and not later than S5 years .. -~ 15,481 30,961 - . °
30,962 47,147

MEMBERS' LIABILITY

. Each member of the charitable combany undénakes to bontr’ibhte to the assets of the company in the .
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a

member, such amount as may be required, not exceedmg £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

meg to the nature of the Academys operatuons and the composition of the Board of Trustees being

drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with orgamsatlons

in which a trustees has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's
length and in accordance with the Academy's ﬁnancial'regulations and normal procurement procedures. -

Durlng the period £8,958 (2018: £4,489) was recelved from The Sheldon School Enrichment Fund which
has trustees in common with the Academy.

P C T Story, a Trustee, has been nominated by the Academy to take the Academy's seat as a Trustee of:
the Chippenham AstroTurf Project - known as CAP96.-CAP96 leases land from the Academy on a 50
year lease for a peppercorn rent, on which it has built an AstroTurf pitch for use by local community
groups. The Academy benefits by being able to use the AstroTurf pitch for free during normal school”
hours. In addition the school manages all bookings for CAP96 and provides staff to unlock and lock the
facility during evenings and at weekends, for which an annual management charge is payable by CAP96
to-Sheldon School. This charge is reviewed annually by the School Business Manager, and is designed

-simply to cover the staffing costs associated within this provision. P C T Story withdraws from all -

discussion at CAP96 meetings relating to this arrangement,
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SHELDON SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

29.

30.

AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS
The Academy distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the accounting
period ended 31 August 2019 the Academy received £18,300 (2018: £20,734) and disbursed £23,886

(2018: £23,897) from the fund. An amount of £465 (2018: £4,851) is included in other credltors relating to
undistributed funds that is repayable to the ESFA.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following wa§'a f_s"ubsidiary undertaking of the Academy:

Name =~ . - ' Company’ Class of ~ Inéluded in
) T . number . ° shares . consolidation
Sheldon Schogl Trading Limited 09551925 100 .  Yes

The financial results of the subsidiary for the year were:

Name o ‘ Income Expenditure. . Profit/Loss)  Net assets
‘ : : £ £  /Surplus/ = .~ £
’ (Deficit) for .
the year
£
Sheldon School Trading Limited 112,048 (79,222) . . 32,826 , 1
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